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THEME
STATEMENT

Renewable eneRGY
Power for Sustainable Development.

The theme for our 2018 Annual Report reflects the 
work and commitment of the organisation towards 
the production of cleaner and more sustainable 

energy to power national development. Less than twenty 
years after the introduction of commercial electricity in 
the capital city of Kingstown, the first hydroelectric plant 
in St. Vincent was commissioned at South Rivers in 1952. 
The commissioning of hydroelectric plants at Richmond 
in 1961 and Cumberland in 1987 followed.  The latter of 
these plants was commissioned at a time when the rest 
of the world had virtually turned its back on renewable 
energy due to the relatively low price of fuel in the 1980’s.
In the year just concluded our company completed the 
refurbishment of the country’s oldest hydroelectric power 
plant, commissioned the largest Solar PV generating 
facility in the State, continued its negotiations for the 
exploration of geothermal energy, and facilitated a sixty 
percent expansion in domestic grid tied Solar PV systems.  
The Shareholder, Board of Directors, Management and 
Staff of the company are committed to the production 
of a cleaner and more sustainable form of energy to 
power national development.  This commitment is based 
on our historical experience of the value of renewable 
energy, our singular determination to reduce variability 
and cost of energy to our customers, our desire to have 
greater energy security through the use of indigenous 
energy resources, and an unquestionable commitment 
to addressing the deleterious effect on earth’s climate 
resulting from the burning of fossil fuels for the production 
of electricity.
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VInleC’s Vision

To be the best service provider in the State and among the leading utilities in the world.

VInleC’s Mission

To deliver an electricity supply service of the best quality and value to all customers; to satisfy 
the interest of shareholders and employees; to support sustainable development and contribute 
towards a high quality of life for our people.
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CORPORATE 
INFORMATION

Registered Office
Paul’s Avenue
Kingstown
St. Vincent and the Grenadines
Telephone: 784 456 1701
Fax: 784 456 2436
Email: vinlec@vinlec.com
Website: www.vinlec.com 

Directors
Ms. René M. Baptiste – Chairman, C.M.G., LL.B (Hons.), L.E.C.
Mr. Maurice Edwards – BSc, CGA, O.B.E.
Mr. Godfred Pompey – Q.A.T, BSc., MA
Mr. Brian George – B. Eng. (Hons.), MSc, PMP
Mr. Simon Glynn
Mr. Patrick Da Silva
Mr. Tyrone Burke - BA, MA
Mr. Lance Peters - BSc Geology, MSc Geoscience Engineering, Post Grad Dip. Geothermal Geology
Mr. Alex Williams - BSc Electrical Engineering; Cert Construction Project management; Cert Solar PV Design   
          and Installation

Company Secretary

Mrs. Juliette Hinds-Wilson – CMA, ACIS 

Chief executive Officer
Mr. Thornley Myers – MSc, MASc, Dip. Mgmt. 

Solicitors
Saunders & Huggins 

bankers
The Bank of Nova Scotia
CIBC First Caribbean International Bank (Barbados) Limited
Bank of St. Vincent and the Grenadines Ltd
RBTT Bank (Caribbean) Ltd 

auditors
KPMG Chartered Accountants
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2018 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
iNDiCES mEASURE Of SUCCESS TARgET PERfORmANCE

Financial Performance Net Earnings

Total operating cost per kWh sold 
(excluding fuel cost, depreciation and 
insurance)

Power System losses % of net generation

Own Use %

Days Sales Outstanding 

$5.00m

$0.26

6.85%

3.00%

45 days

$5.955m

$0.27

7.58%

3.02%

47 days

Customer Value Fuel Efficiency

Customer Satisfaction Score

17.85 kWh/IG

83% 

17.87 kWh/IG

81.72%

Risk Management Safety Accidents

Work Hours Lost (% of available hours)

0.97/100 FTE

0.80%

2.23/100 FTE

0.86%

Sale of electricity Grant/borrowings
Interest Sundry IncomeSale of electricity Grant/borrowings

Interest Sundry Income

36%

4%

1% 17%

15%

28%

Payroll Costs Purchase of Fixed Assets
Debt Service Fuel & Lubricants
Income Tax Operations

36%

4%

1% 17%

15%

28%

Payroll Costs Purchase of Fixed Assets
Debt Service Fuel & Lubricants
Income Tax Operations

From where the VINLeC $ Came how the VINLeC $ was speNt

96.98%

1.49% 0.74%
0.35%
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their report for the year ended December 31, 2018:

1. financial Statements 
 The annexed audited Financial Statements show net earnings for the year of $5,955,299 after accounting 

for income tax of $210,765 (Current: $4,104,170 and deferred ($4,314,935) )
 
2. State of Affairs
 The state of affairs of the company is as set out in the financial statements on pages 22 to 66. There 

were no significant changes during the financial year. 

3. Principal Activities
 The company’s principal activities consist of the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity 

throughout the state of St. Vincent and the Grenadines. There were no significant changes during the 
year.

4. Directors
 The Directors of the company for the financial year ended December 31, 2018 were

5. Auditors
 The retiring auditors KPMG offer themselves for reappointment at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.
 On behalf of the Board of Directors

 Chairman          Director

    
     Corporate Secretary

	 •	 Renè	Baptiste,	Chairman	
	 •	 Maurice	Edwards,	Deputy	Chairman
	 •	 Brian	George
	 •	 Simon	Glynn
	 •	 Tyrone	Burke

	 •	 Patrick	DaSilva	
	 •	 Godfred	Pompey	
	 •	 Alex	Williams
	 •	 Lance	Peters
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SuMMARIzED OPERATIONAl & 
FINANCIAl PERFORMANCE

EC$120.4M
T O T A L  R E V E N U E S

EC$5.95M
N E T  E A R N I N G S

EC$9.57M
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

4.32%
RETURN ON EQUITY (ROE)

OPERATING COST/kWh SOLD

22:78
DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

2.55 TIMES
DEBT SERVICE

COVERAGE RATIO

EC$87.4M
RETAINED EARNINGS

EC$1.03

EC$0.47

FUEL EFFICIENCY
17.87kWh/IG

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

431MWh
MWH SOLD/FTE

7.58%
POWER SYSTEM LOSSES

Fuel Efficiency

17.7

17.75

17.8

17.85

17.9

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

17.84
17.82

17.75

17.8717.87

kWh/IG

Power System Losses (%)

6

6.5

7

7.5

8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

7.12

6.57

7.1

6.86

7.58

power system Losses (%)FueL eFFICIeNCy
(kwh/IG)
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CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT

iNDEPENDENCE 
THROUgH 
HARNESSiNg Of 
OUR NATURAL 
RESOURCES iS 
THE SUSTAiNAbLE 
COURSE TO 
fOLLOw
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Our mandate to provide oversight of the St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited is caught in 
the crosshairs of a period in which the electricity sector worldwide has been undergoing 
tumultuous changes.  This period of rapid technological advancement, the acknowledged 

impact of the sector on climate change, and increasing customer demand for service choices are 
accelerating a transformation in the traditional utility business model.  We as a Board are delighted to 
be providing oversight to a committed management team to usher this new period of transformation.

In transforming the company to this envisioned new and sustainable business model that will serve 
as a partner in national development, we have identified the following drivers: good corporate 
governance, the appropriate use of information technology, the role of renewable energy, service 
reliability, customer involvement, and a competent human resource base. During the year that 
concluded the Board was involved in activities that advanced the identified strategic areas.  

In recognition of the National Energy Policy mandate, the Board of Directors and the Management 
has spent significant time discussing and deliberating the relevant issues relative to the exploration 
of geothermal energy.  We have also created the environment that has led to a significant growth 
in customer owned grid-tied Solar PV installation. Independence through harnessing of our natural 
resource is the sustainable course to follow.

While we seek to address the identified strategic areas of focus for the company, we intend to 
pay particular attention to the development of a skilled and competent workforce.  In an effort to 
continue the development of the organisation human resource capacity, we will continue to support 
the programme to develop in-house engineers and technicians at the University of the West Indies 
(i.e. St. Augustine Campus) and the University of Trinidad and Tobago.  A significant number of the 
company’s senior management is approaching retirement, and in this regard, we will work towards 
implementation of an effective succession plan.

As we look to the future, we are committed to working towards the transformation of the company 
into a responsive, technology driven and efficient organisation supporting national development.  We 
are confident that the management is committed to this task and that together we will successfully 
achieve the overarching objectives of the shareholders. 

Rene M. Baptiste
ChaiRMan of the BoaRd
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2011
1. Official opening of the Lowmans Bay Power Plant 

and the commissioning of an additional 8.7 MW 
generating capacity

2. Expansion of 33 kV transmission system 
(including the building and commissioning of 
the South Rivers Substation)

3. VINLEC revised and implemented new 
Performance Management System

4. The company celebrated its 50th Anniversary in 
November

5. Commencement of a second phase of wind 
data collection at Diamond

6. Installation of the new time and attendance and 
facilities access control system at  Corporate 
Headquarters

7. Significant upgrade to corporate data security 
with the implementation of a Triple Location 
Data Backup System

2012
1. The company began the implementation of a 

major Fire Safety Protection Project 
2. Expansion of the 11 kV distribution with the 

addition of the Belair Feeder (2.7 kM)
3. Commencement of the Installation of Meter 

Centres in Kingstown
4. Commissioned a 177 kWdc grid tied Solar PV 

system at Cane Hall
5. Electronic Bill Notification Launched

2013
1. Completed major rehabilitation of Union Island 

Power Plant
2. Information Systems security Policy launched
3. Major Damage to hydroelectricity system in 

December from Flooding

2014
1. Commissioning of the Lowmans Bay 370 kWdc 

Solar PV system
2. Roll-out of Geographic Information System (GIS) 
3. Installation of first set of LED streetlights
4. Company provided subsidy to customers due to 

higher fuel surcharge resulting from the absence 
of the South Rivers and Richmond Hydro Plants 

5. Installation of diesel unit # 4 in Mayreau (104 kW)
6. Completion of Annex to Corporate Headquarters 

in Kingstown
7. Major ICT Network Infrastructure and Security 

System Upgrade

2015
1. Rehabilitation of Richmond Hydroelectric Station 

and pipeline was completed
2. Commissioned the 11 kV switchgear and housing 

facility at South Rivers
3. Rebranding of the company Website 
4. Launch of the Online Customer Account Payment 

and Billing Inquiry System

2016
1. Completed significant reconfiguration of the 

distribution system to accommodate the 
connection of the Argyle International Airport

2. Commencement of works to rehabilitate the 
South Rivers hydroelectric plant

3. Installation of diesel unit no. 2A in Mayreau (80 
kW) – this followed decommissioning of original 
60 kW Unit no. 2.

4. Launch of VINVolunteers Programme 
5. Implementation of Cold back up – iSeries 

Software and Hardware Redundancy

2017
1. VINLEC had its first graduates from the CARILEC 

Linesman training programme
2. The company responded to damage caused by 

hurricanes Irma and Maria at regional utilities 
by dispatching line crews to BVI, Anguilla, and 
Dominica.

3. Installation of two new generators in Union Island
4. Implementation of High Resolution Video 

Surveillance System (Kingstown)

SIGNIFICANT
EVENTS

2011 - 2017

HIGHLIGHTING
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MANAGEMENT
TEAM

Thornley Myers
MSc, MASC, Dip.Mgmt.

Chief Executive Officer

Elrias Williams
BSc Eng., Dip. Mgmt.(UWI), Dip.

Eng.(C.A.S.T), MIEEE 
Senior Transmission & 
Distribution Engineer

Willis Williams
MCSE, Dip. Digital Electronics, 

Dip. Computer Business 
Applications Manager 

information Systems

Vaughn Lewis
PhD

Electrical Engineering
manager Engineering

Ricky Wright
BSc Mechanical Engineering 
Senior Planning Engineer

Joan Millington
BSc, FCCA, MBA-Finance 

manager internal Audit

Juliette Hinds-Wilson
CPA-CMA, ACIS

manager finance

Jillian Williams
BSc Management MBA Hu-

man Resource Management 
manager 

Human Resources & 
Administration

Augustus Ambrose
BSc Mechanical Engineering, 
Associate Degree Economics  

Senior generation 
Engineer

Dexter Rose
Lic. Journalism

Exec Dip Business
MSc International Relations

manager Customer 
Service
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St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited, known locally 
as “VINLEC” was incorporated under the laws of St. 
Vincent & the Grenadines on November 27, 1961. The 
company, operating under the Electricity Supply Act 
of 1973 has an exclusive license for the exercise and 
performance of functions relating to the supply of 
electricity in St. Vincent and the Grenadines.
VINLEC currently has installed generating capacity of 
36,810 kW on mainland St. Vincent with an additional 
11,025 KW on the Grenadine Islands of Bequia, Union 
Island, Canouan and Mayreau. VINLEC is committed 
to providing a safe and reliable supply of electricity to 
over 45,000 customers and was able to satisfactorily 
fulfill that mandate during the year under review. 

Company Performance
The company achieved an overall creditable 
performance in the year under review. Despite 
electricity sales declining marginally, the company 
realized after tax earnings of $5.955 million and 
achieved the threshold or better on seven of its ten 
Corporate Indicators.

indicator Threshold
Actual 

Performance

Cost Management
•	 Operating	cost	per	

kWh sold $/kWh
•	 Power	System	

Losses %
•	 Fuel	efficiency	

(kWh/IG)
•	 Own	use	%

0.27

7.00

17.81

3.10

0.27

7.58

17.87

3.02

financial Performance
•	 Net	earnings	($M)
•	 Accounts	

receivable days 
outstanding (days)

4.00

48

5.95

47

Stakeholder 
Satisfaction
•	 Customer	

satisfaction score %
•	 Avg.	Customer	

Outage (mins/
customer)

80.00

3.50

81.72

2.74

Risk Management
•	 Safety	incidents	 

( /100 FTE)
•	 Work	hours	lost

1.61

0.80

2.23

0.86

Financial Results 

earnings
The Company returned net earnings for fiscal 2018 of 
$5,955,299 after accounting for $210,765 in income 
taxes (current $4,104,170 and deferred ($4,314,935)). 
This result was achieved against a backdrop of a 
0.59% decline in sales and a 2.075 % increase in our 
active customer base which stood at 45,091 by year 
end.  

Sales
Kilowatt-hour sales for the year ended December 31, 
2018 were 135,115,902 (2017: 135,931,219), a decrease of 
815,317 kWh when compared with Fiscal 2017. There 
was on average a net addition of 76 customers per 
month for the twelve months ending on December 31, 
2018.

operating Revenues
Total operating revenues of $120.379 million 
represents a $11.477 million or 10.53% increase 
compared with 2017, and fuel surcharge revenue 
was the most significant contributor to that increase. 
Higher fuel prices combined with a 3.9% decrease in 
the quantity of fuel consumed year on year were the 
drivers as this resulted in an average fuel surcharge 
rate of $0.37 per kWh compared with $0.28 per kWh 
in 2017. Fuel surcharge revenue therefore was $50.514 
million in 2018 as compared with $38.220 million in 
2017, a 32.16% increase year on year.

-1000

2750

6500

10250

14000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

earNINGs
(eC$000’s)

2013
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Domestic Commercial Industrial Street Lights

2013
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Domestic Commercial Industrial Street Lights

saLes
(In megawatt hours mwh)



16

Our revenue from energy sales declined marginally 
to $68.572 million down from $69.493 million in 2017.  
Given that there were no adjustments to our tariff 
structure during the year, the decrease in energy 
sales revenue resulted from a decline in all our 
customer segments, with industrial having the largest 
percentage decline at 4.66%.  

operating expenses
Total operating expenses for Fiscal 2018 increased 
by $10.686 million to $112.874 million up from $102.188 
million in 2017.  The main contributor to the increase 
was a $12.923 million increase in diesel fuel costs.  
The cost of diesel fuel consumed in 2018 amounted 
to $54.790 million representing 48% of our operating 
costs as compared with $42.128 million in fiscal 
2017or 41% of operating costs. The average price per 
imperial gallon of fuel consumed for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 increased to EC$7.83 compared to 
EC$5.78 for fiscal 2017.  Our gross power generation 
was provided 83% by diesel (125 MWh); 16% hydro 
(23 MWh) and the remaining 1MWh from our solar 
installation.

Our other power generation costs (excluding fuel) for 
fiscal 2018 totaled $26.412 million, 5.54% lower than 
our 2017 costs of $27.962 million and is reflective of our 
cyclical maintenance programme, which is based on 
the units’ running hours.

Transmission & Distribution (“T&D”) expenses for fiscal 
2018 totaled $11.416 million, a decrease of $113,000 
when compared to 2017. Our T& D maintenance 
activities included planned line, transformer and 
streetlight maintenance as well as tree trimming.

Capital investments
Recognizing the importance of continuous 
improvement in our infrastructure, the company had 
completed or significantly advanced a number of 
capital projects during the year.  The major capital 
projects continuing in 2018 were work on the pipelines 
at the South Rivers Hydroelectric and installation of 
photovoltaic systems at Union Island and Argyle 
International Airport.  The Hydro rehabilitation project 
involved the replacement of the traditional wood 
stave pipelines with 900-meter diameter glass 
reinforced plastic (“GRP”) pipes and the rehabilitation 
and refurbishment of the turbines. South Rivers 
was recommissioned in August. The Argyle solar 
system was commissioned in June with Union Island 
showing significant progress with the expectation of 
commissioning by 2nd quarter of 2019
Total capital expenditure of $9.577 million for fiscal 
2018 relate to:
•	 Hydro	Generation	rehabilitation	and	replacement	

$1.039 million
•	 Photovoltaic	systems	at	Union	Island	and	Argyle	

International Airport $1.473 million
•	 Other	 generation	 expansion	 and	 upgrade	

$2.101million
•	 Distribution	 system	 expansion	 and	 upgrades	

$1.466 million
•	 Facility	and	auxiliary	asset	replacement	$3.498
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Safety and the environment
The safety of all our employees as well as that of our 
contractors and members of the public remained 
the number one priority for the company. Training 
programmes focusing specifically on safety were 
provided to employees in an effort to aid in the 
development of a higher level of consciousness 
related to workplace safety and the month of May 
was again designated as Environmental, Health 
and Safety Awareness month; held this year 
under the theme “Safety Ties Us Together”. The 
activities conducted were intended to refocus our 
employees on the importance of safety on the job 
as well as maintaining a healthy lifestyle. We also 
took the opportunity to express appreciation to our 
Transmission and Distribution staff through the 
hosting of a breakfast celebration event dubbed 
“Highlighting our High Wire Heroes”.
Despite our emphasis on safety, it was very 
unfortunate that there were two (2) major incidents 
on the Transmission and Distribution network. The first 
incident resulted in an electrical shock to a Lineman 
working with a Contractor. The second incident 
involved one of our employees, a Lineman who 
sustained serious injuries after falling with a rotten pole.  

Renewable energy
The company is committed to exploring large-scale 
alternative energy solutions as we believe that there 
are environmental and economic benefits to be 
derived from the use of renewable energy sources. 
These renewable energy sources will replace 
(displace) some of the diesel fuel presently being 
used for the production of electricity after resources 
by our generators. During the year under review there 
has been an increase in customers having their small 
scale solar panels connected to our grid, thereby 
resulting in additional renewable and alternative 
energy being available to the system. At December 
31, 2018, there were 67 customers connected with 
total capacity of 378 kilowatts (“kW’). Our own solar 
PV installation contributed to the grid 1,149,929kWh 
of energy during fiscal 2018, while our hydroelectric 
plants produced 23,770,249kW or 15.85% of our gross 
energy generation in 2018.
The Government’s geothermal project made 
fairly steady progress during the year, and by 
yearend significant progress had been made in the 
negotiations between VINLEC and the Geothermal 
Company towards a Power Purchase Agreement.

human Resource and administration
In 2018 the company invested significant amounts 
in the development of its employees for workplace 
skills development, employee job satisfaction and 
workplace safety. Over 5,600 man hours were 
devoted to training staff to do their jobs in a safe 

and efficient manner as well as skills enhancement. 
The majority of the training was in-house, thereby 
allowing for maximum staff participation in a cost 
effective manner. Employees also attended a variety 
of conferences and workshops in order to keep abreast 
of current industry best practices and technology. 
The company continues the expansion and 
development of its technical capacity by supporting 
attendance at  the two year technician training 
programme at the University of Trinidad and Tobago.  
During the year two students returned and there was 
the addition of three more students to bring the total 
at the University of Trinidad and Tobago to four. This 
commitment and training resulted in the promotion 
of several employees to positions of increased 
responsibility.
As part of the company’s continuing commitment 
to the development of the country’s youths, it again 
hosted tertiary level students on work attachments 
during the year. The students received hands-on 
training under the guidance of professionals within 
their assigned fields.
The company continues to pay great attention 
to changes in customer needs, and is working to 
improve its administrative, corporate governance 
and customer service systems.  We see the 
developments in information technology as a 
fundamental vehicle towards achieving greater 
efficiency. We have worked on expanding our fibre 
optic communication network, enhancing the 
corporate software suite and placed increased 
emphasis on data security.
The Internal Audit function continues to monitor 
the Company’s internal control systems and offers 
suggestions for improvements where applicable.

Community involvement/Corporate 
outreach
Through our Corporate Outreach programme we are 
working to create a culture where giving is more than 
financial donations. We are getting involved directly 
with communities and lending our time, our goodwill 
and our expertise. A key component of our commitment 
to our people is to value and promote diversity and 
inclusion in our workplace and in our community. 
VINLEC partnered with the Ministry of Education 
and the St. Vincent and the Grenadines Science 
Teachers’ Association to host the National Science 
and Technology fair. Through this activity, the 
Company provided opportunities for collaboration 
and teamwork among students and teachers. Our 
close partnership with the Ministry of Education has 
led to increased participation by students.
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Through our VINVolunteers programme of linking 
our employees with the communities in which they 
work we continued work with students of the Bishop’s 
College Kingstown (BCK). The BCK programme 
focuses on mentorship, moral support and nutritional 
support.  Another group of VINVolunteers worked with 
a group at the Liberty Lodge Boys Center.  
As part of our commitment to the development of the 
social fabric of the society, the company supported 
numerous numerous sporting and  cultural 
organizations.
 
engineering Division

In 2018 the Engineering Division focused on ensuring 
the reliability of the service to customers by renewing 
and maintaining the generation plant capacity 
in the company, expanding and maintaining the 
transmission and distribution line infrastructure, 
and increasing the company’s renewable energy 
portfolio. Besides the scheduled maintenance of the 
generating plants, a new diesel engine was installed 
at Cane Hall, and the project to rehabilitate the hydro 
power stations at Richmond and South Rivers was 
completed.  During the year construction started 
on the company’s first Solar Photo-Voltaic (PV) - 
battery storage – Diesel Hybrid system on Union 
Island  and designs were finalised for a similar but 
smaller plant on Mayreau.  On the transmission and 
distribution side, VINLEC completed work to harden 
its transmission lines from Spring Village to Lowmans 
Bay and for the first time hosted the CARILEC Lineman 
Rodeo at the Diamond linesman training facility. 

Generation Focus

Richmond and South Rivers hydro 
Rehabilitation
Construction work on the project to rehabilitate 
the aging Richmond and South Rivers Hydro Power 
Stations commenced in 2015. The project involved 
replacing all (900m) of the wood-stave pipeline at 
the Richmond Power station and comprehensively 
refurbishing the turbines to prolong operating life 
and modernise control systems. 

While construction activities were completed 
at Richmond in 2015, remote control operation 
of the power station from the Cumberland 
Hydro Power Station commenced in 2018. 
 
Construction work on the South Rivers rehabilitation 
commenced in December 2015 and was completed 
in June 2018. The scope of rehabilitation work at 
South Rivers was significantly more extensive than at 
Richmond, and involved the following: 
•	 Refurbishing	 the	 turbines	 to	 prolong	 operating	

life and modernize control systems
•	 Construction	 of	 a	 new	 11kV	 switchgear	 building	

for a new 11kW switchgear 
•	 Completed	 reconfiguration	 of	 the	 electrical	

systems at the power station
•	 Replacement	of	all	wood-stave	and	most	of	the	

metal pipeline along very challenging terrain 
(1900m) 

•	 Rebuilding	and	reconfiguring	the	intake	
•	 Rehabilitating	the	head	pond
•	 Repairing	sections	of	the	existing	concrete	pipe

The station commenced operation in August 2018 
with remote control from the Cane Hall Power Station.  
The rehabilitation is expected to increase the station’s 
energy output by approximately 20%.
Unfortunately, the new shaft of one of the refurbished 
turbines failed in October 2018, and through 
communication with the supplier the decision was 
taken to redesign the main shaft for all three (3) 
generators at the plant in 2019. 
 
Solar PV
Grid connected solar PV installations throughout the 
country increased by 61% in 2018 when compared with 
2017; from 1081kW to 1,744kW.  The main contributor 
to this was the installation of a 522 kW (DC) solar 
PV just south east of the Argyle International Airport. 
It is projected that the rate of growth of Solar PV 
installations in the country will similarly increase in 
2019. 
 
Union island Solar PV – Battery Storage 
diesel hybrid
In January 2018, VINLEC signed a contract with 
Akuo Energy Solutions of France to construct a high 
penetration Solar PV system on the Grenadine island 
of Union Island. The project was primarily sponsored 
by a grant from the United Arab Emirates.  The system 
uses 600kW of solar panels coupled to a 637kWh 
battery storage integrated with the existing network 
on the island. 

Renewable Energy Production

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

0.77

0.54

0.53
0.590.59

15.85

13.54

10.41
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Solar Hydro

reNewabLe eNerGy produCtIoN
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The target for this project is to achieve a renewable 
energy penetration of over 30%.  The result of this 
project is anticipated to be a significant reduction in 
the operating hours of the diesel generators, reduced 
maintenance cost and lower fuel cost.  
The system would have the ability to run the island 
completely from solar PV and battery storage for up 
to 8 hours during a sunny day.  The solar installation is 
being constructed on a 2-acre plot of land adjacent to 
the existing power station. The process of integrating 
the new system with the existing power station 
required the acquisition of new 11kV switchgear. The 
project was originally scheduled to be commissioned 
in November 2018, but encountered a number of 
setbacks.  The project will be completed during the 
first half of 2019.

Mayreau Solar PV – Battery Storage diesel 
hybrid
During the year significant effort was expended in 
negotiating a solar PV - storage project for Mayerau.  
After the original contractor failure to execute the 
project, by yearend the decision was made to award 
two contracts for the construction of the facility.  The 
German firm SMA will be the equipment supplier 
with installation of the facility to be done by  Rocky 
Mountain institute (RMI) in collaboration with VINLEC. 
The project is expected to be completed during the 
third quarter of 2019 and will provide approximately 
30% of the generation required on the island using 
100kW of solar PV power and 216kWh of battery 
storage. 

diesel Generation
The company completed scheduled maintenance of 
its diesel generating plants in St. Vincent and on the 
grenadines islands of Bequia, Union Island, Canouan 
and Mayreau.  However, in an effort to provide security 
of supply a new 2MW high speed generator was 
commissioned at the Cane Hall Power Station.  In 2018 
the overall fuel efficiency of all diesel plants on the 
company’s power systems was the highest in recent 
history. Conventional generation expansion on the 
mainland remains on hold pending the outcome of 
the exploration for geothermal energy. The decision 
was made in 2018 to retire Cane Hall Unit No. 4 which 
was originally installed in 1985 due to the increasingly 
high cost to maintain the unit. The maintenance 
staff continues to work hard to keep the remaining 
generation capacity reliable until a clear generation 
expansion path is determined following geothermal 
exploration. 
On Union Island, we had the first full year of operation 
of two (2) new generators that were installed in 2017. 
The installation of these generators has significantly 
improved reliability and fuel efficiency on the island. 

On Bequia, the purchase of two (2) plots of land 
was completed.  This will allow sufficient space for 
future development of the power station to meet the 
growing demand on Bequia which proved to be the 
fastest growing demand of VINLEC’s five (5) island 
systems. 

Transmission and Distribution 
Focus

In the area of transmission and distribution work to 
improve the resilience on the 33 kV transmission line  
from Spring Village to Lowmans Bay was completed 
at a cost of  $160,000. 
In 2018 the company made a strategic decision to 
move towards hotline maintenance work on its 11 
kV and 400/230 V system.  This decision is one that 
should lead to lower outage time for customers and 
improve reliability of the service. Procurement of the 
required training, equipment and materials for hotline 
maintenance will commence in 2019. 
There are approximately 25,000 wooden poles on 
VINLEC’s Transmission and Distribution network. 
Prolonging the life of poles will significantly impact 
maintenance expenses, system reliability, and capital 
investment.  In 2018, VINLEC conducted training 
aimed at conducting more effective inspections of 
its wooden poles and will purchase material and 
equipment in 2019 in order to prolonging the lifespan 
of existing poles. 
In 2018, the company in collaboration with CARILEC 
hosted the CARILEC Lineman Rodeo at its Diamond 
training facility. There were participants from several 
neighbouring utilities and equipment suppliers 
and vendors.  The event was a huge success.  

Summary
The year 2018 proved to be a very challenging one 
for the company. The significant increase in the 
cost of diesel and its attendant increase in the 
fuel surcharge rate as applied to our customers’ 
electricity bills appear to have underpinned much of 
the contraction seen in fiscal 2018. Despite this, as a 
company we stand ready to meet the demands due 
to growth in our customer base. We look to the future 
with optimism and focus as we continue to deliver a 
safe and reliable electricity service to our customers, 
while managing costs and improving efficiencies.

thornley o. a. o. Myers
Chief exeCUtiVe offiCeR
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CORPORaTe SOCIal ReSPOnSIbIlITY SUMMaRY

RENEwAbLE 
ENERgY SOURCE

UNiTS 
gENERATED

DiESEL USE 
AvOiDED

fUEL COST 
SAvED

SOLAR 1,149,929 kWh 64,349 I/G EC$0.504M

HYDRO 23,770,249 
kWh

1,330,176 I/G EC$10.420M

5.

1. Kettle Appeal.
2. Science Fair 2018 Prize 

giving.
3. GHS-pan
4. VINVoices
5. Science Fair awards 
6. Children’s Christmas 

Party 

EC$0.479M
SPONSORSHIP & DONATIONS

6.
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KPMG, a Barbados and Eastern Caribbean partnership, registered in Barbados, Antigua and Barbuda, Saint Lucia and St. Vincent and the Grenadines, 
and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss 
entity.

KPMG 
First Floor 
National Insurance Services Headquarters 
Upper Bay Street 
P.O. Box 587, Kingstown 
St. Vincent and the Grenadines 

Telephone: (784) 451-1300 
Fax: (784) 451-2329 
Email: kpmg@kpmg.vc 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholder 
St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited
St. Vincent 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, 
the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2018, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in St. Vincent, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED

To the Shareholder 
St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT, CONTINUED

To the Shareholder 
St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements, continued

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Accountants
Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenadines 
November 13, 2019
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St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2018
With comparative figures as of December 31, 2017

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)
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St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited

Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2018
With comparative figures as of December 31, 2017

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Page 5 
ST. VINCENT ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2018
With comparative figures for year ended December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Note
2018

$
2017

$

Revenues
Energy sales 68,572,156 69,493,571
Fuel surcharge recovered 50,514,230 38,220,690
Other revenue 1,292,664 1,188,676

120,379,050 108,902,937

Operating expenses
Diesel generation 25,900,743 27,938,690
Hydro generation 4,075,915 3,848,197
Renewable energy purchased 306,923 234,902
Transmission and distribution 11,416,474 11,529,402
Fuel surcharge 51,227,716 38,304,473
Administrative expenses 19,946,465 20,333,015

18 112,874,236 102,188,679

Operating profit 7,504,814 6,714,258
Other (losses) gains, net 19 (556,976) 113,850
Profit before net finance costs and taxation 6,947,838 6,828,108

Finance income 705,211 1,101,015
Finance costs (1,908,515) (1,543,463)
Net finance costs (1,203,304) (442,448)
Profit before taxation 5,744,534 6,385,660
Income tax expense 20 210,765 (6,618,526)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 5,955,299 (232,866)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit pension plan, net of tax, being 
total other comprehensive loss for the year 7(a) - (364,628)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 5,955,299 (597,494)

Earnings per share 21 1.03 (0.04)

The notes on pages 9 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.The notes on pages 31 to 66 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Page 8 
ST. VINCENT ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2018
With comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2017
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Note
2018

$
2017

$
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss)for the year 5,955,299 (232,866)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5 19,554,195 19,690,452
Amortization of consumers' contributions to line extensions 14 (1,276,087) (1,254,935)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 386,156 (125,202)
Finance costs 1,908,515 1,543,463
Defined benefit pension expense - 428,594
Defined benefit plan contributions 7(a)                    - (1,202,511)
Amortization of deferred grant income 15 (7,341) (7,810)
Finance income (705,211) (1,101,015)
Fair value gain on FVTPL financial assets 327,300 -
Income tax expense (210,765) 6,618,526
Operating profit before working capital changes 25,932,061 24,356,696
Change in inventories (1,922,982) (2,811,216)
Effect of change in accounting policy: ECL (6,002,997) -
Change in trade and other receivables 1,151,111 (2,217,446)
Change in prepayments 62,255 (322,143)
Change in trade and other payables (2,667,900) 120,133
Cash generated from operations 16,551,548 19,126,024
Interest paid (1,516,052) (2,521,706)
Interest received 875,852 1,203,295
Income tax paid (2,346,214) (4,003,699)
Net cash generated from operating activities 13,565,134 13,803,914

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of long-term securities (1,000,000) -
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investment securities 4,141,791 6,637,432
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5 (9,577,286) (11,446,798)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 78,162 125,202
Proceeds from redemption of long-term investment securities 1,538,018 1,604,790
Net cash used in investing activities (4,819,315) (3,079,374)

Cash flows from financing activities
Change in consumers’ deposits 240,650 217,522
Repayment of borrowings (9,217,787) (13,455,915)
Proceeds from long-term loan/grant 1,758,180 -
Dividends paid - (5,212,646)
Net change in consumers’ contributions 14 260,144 466,088
Net cash used in financing activities (6,958,813) (17,984,951)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,787,006 (7,260,411)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 451,666 7,712,077
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 2,238,672 451,666
Represented by:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,272,621 1,342,583
Bank overdraft (33,949) (890,917)

2,238,672 451,666
The notes on pages 9 to 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2018
With comparative figures as of December 31, 2017

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

The notes on pages 31 to 66 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Reporting entity

St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated under the laws of St. Vincent and 
the Grenadines on November 27, 1961 and continued as Company 64 of 1961 under Section 365 of the 
Companies’ Act of 1994, under the laws of St. Vincent and the Grenadines.  The Company operates under 
the Electricity Supply Act of 1973, and has an exclusive license for the exercise and performance of 
functions relating to the supply of electricity in St. Vincent and the Grenadines. The Company’s registered 
office is situated at Paul’s Avenue, Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenadines.

The Company is 100% owned by the Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines.

2. Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance
   

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on November 13, 2019.
  
(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain 
financial assets which are measured at fair value. The methods used to measure fair value are 
discussed further in Note 4. 

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars, which is the Company’s 
functional currency.  All financial information is presented in Eastern Caribbean dollars, unless 
otherwise indicated, and has been rounded to the nearest dollar.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates 
are recognised prospectively. 

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements 
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
the financial statements is included in the following notes:

• Note 3(o)  - Revenue recognition 
• Note 4(b) - Measurement of fair values
• Note 3(g) - Property, plant and equipment
• Note 3(f) - Financial instruments
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3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
financial statements.

(a) Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Eastern Caribbean dollars at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting 
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. 
Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that 
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

(b) Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment securities

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits held with banks. Cash equivalents comprise 
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term commitments rather than for investment purposes and original maturities of ninety (90) days 
or less at the date of purchase. Highly liquid investments include deposits where the maturities do 
not exceed three months from the acquisition date. Investments with maturities between ninety (90) 
days and one year at the date of purchase and consist primarily of certificates of deposit are 
considered to be short-term investment securities.  Cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investment securities are measured at amortized cost.

(c) Dividends

Dividends that are proposed and declared after the reporting date are not shown as a liability but 
are disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Dividends declared are recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the period 
in which they become a constructive obligation.

(d) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are carried initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost less a provision for impairment.  The provision for impairment of trade and other 
receivables is established based on lifetime expected credit losses (ELCL). The amount of the 
provision is recognized in profit and loss.

Trade and other receivables, being short-term, are not discounted.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost, cost being determined on the weighted average 
basis, and net realizable value.  Allowance is made for obsolete, slow-moving and damaged goods.

Goods-in-transit are stated at invoiced cost.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(f) Financial instruments

(i) Classification

To determine classification and measurement categories IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, 
except derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the business model for 
managing the assets and the instrument’s contractual cash flow characteristics. 

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities 
category.

(ii) Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities – recognition and derecognition 

The Company initially recognizes trade and other receivables and debt securities on the date 
when they are originated.  All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
recognised on the trade date. 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in 
such derecognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised 
as a separate asset or liability. 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset 
the amounts and intends to either settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

(iii) Non-derivative financial assets - measurement

Loans and receivables
On initial recognition, these assets are measured at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost 
less any impairment. 

Equity securities
Equity securities are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). On initial 
recognition, these assets are measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value. Changes in the 
carrying amount of these financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the 
effective interest rate, impairment losses, fair value and foreign exchange gains and losses 
are recognized in profit and loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(f) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(iii) Non-derivative financial assets – measurement (cont’d)

Debt securities
The Company’s investments in debt securities pass the business and cash flow 
characteristics tests and are therefore measured at amortized costs less any impairment.  

(iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities – measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then 
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment.

The net proceeds of assets disposed of or retired during the year less the net book value of 
such assets are taken to profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Land is not depreciated.  No depreciation is provided on work-in-progress until the assets 
involved have been completed and are available for use.  Depreciation on other assets is 
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual values over 
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

• Freehold property 21/2 -  5% per annum
• Generation plant & machinery 5 -  20% per annum
• Transmission & distribution 5 -  6% per annum
• Motor vehicles   25% per annum
• Furniture and equipment 121/2% per annum

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

(iv) Other

The assets’ residual value, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, 
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property, plant and equipment are 
capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its 
intended use.  Other borrowing costs are expensed.

(h) Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to 
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income 
(OCI) in which case it is recognised in equity or OCI as appropriate.

(i) Current tax  

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss 
for the year and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It 
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

(ii) Deferred tax  

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. 

Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or 
loss; and

• temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability 
of future taxable profits improves. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(h) Income tax (cont'd)

(ii) Deferred tax (cont’d)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to 
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences 
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain 
criteria are met.

 (i) Impairment 

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the company’s financial assets 
impairment method by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking 
expected credit loss method (“ECL”) approach from January 01, 2018.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset 
(the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL) unless there has been no significant increase in 
credit risk since origination in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected 
credit loss. 

The Company’s financial assets include accounts receivable which are short term in nature. 
As is permitted by IFRS 9, the company has voluntarily elected to select an accounting policy 
which recognizes full lifetime expected credit losses. A practical expedient method, in the 
form of a provision matrix, has been applied for trade receivables based on customer 
categories, historical credit loss experiences and future economic expectations. The 
assessment of the correlation between historically observed default rates, forecasted 
economic conditions and ECL’s is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL’s is sensitive to 
change in circumstances and forecasted economic conditions. The Company’s historical 
credit loss experience and forecasted conditions may not be representative of actual 
customer defaults in the future. Information about the company’s receivables is disclosed in 
Note 10.

The Company’s financial assets measured at mortised cost under IFRS 9 mainly comprise 
Government bonds which are medium term in nature. Given that there have not been 
significant increases in related credit risk, the allowance assessment for financial assets 
measured at amortized cost and other receivables has been based on 12 months expected 
credit losses. An ECL probabilistic approach has been used based on:

a) An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating ranges 
of possible outcomes;

b) The time value of money; and
c) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at 

the reporting date, about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic 
conditions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(i) Impairment (cont'd) 

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)

The key elements of the ECL calculations are outlined below:

a) Probability of Default: This measures the instances of default over a period divided by 
the number of payments expected at the beginning of a period.

b) Loss Given Default: This represents amounts never collected or amounts written off once 
a default event occurs

c) Exposure at Default: This represents the outstanding amounts collectible at default.

Forward looking information:

In its ECL model the Company relied on a range of forward-looking information as economic 
inputs, such as:

• GDP growth
• Inflation
• Unemployment rates
• Central government debt

(ii) Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets 
(other than inventories), to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows 
of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(j) Trade and other payables

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if is classified as held-for-trading 
or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs are recognized 
in profit or loss as incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at 
fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(k) Borrowings 

Borrowings are recognized at fair value, being their issue proceeds, net of transaction costs 
incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the 
effective interest method.  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
date.

(l) Consumers` deposits

Given the long-term nature of the customer relationship, customers’ deposits are shown as non-
current liabilities.  

Customers’ deposits are refundable on termination of supply and bear interest at the rate of 2% 
per annum.

(m) Consumers` contributions

In certain specified circumstances, consumers requiring line extensions are required to contribute 
the estimated capital cost of the extensions. These contributions are amortized over the estimated 
useful lives of the relevant capital cost on the straight-line basis by way of a reduction of the 
depreciation charge under transmission and distribution costs.  Contributions in excess of the 
applicable capital cost of line extensions are recorded as other revenue in the period in which they 
are completed.  The capital costs of consumer line extensions are included in property, plant and 
equipment.

(n) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributed to the issue of 
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Among the rights attaching to the Company’s issued ordinary shares are the right to:

(i) attend and vote at meetings of shareholders of the Company; and
(ii) receive dividends as declared from time to time by the Company
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(o) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is income that arises in the course of the ordinary activities of the Company.  It comprises 
income from the sale of energy and from fuel surcharge, which are recognised and measured as 
follows:

(i) Sale of energy 

Revenue from energy sales is based on (1) meter readings, which are carried out on a 
rotational basis throughout each month, and (2) estimates of customer use between the meter 
reading date and the reporting date. The accrual for such unbilled sales is calculated on the 
basis of apportionment of revenue derived from the meter reading period next following the 
reporting date. The amount for unbilled sales is included in accrued income. 

(ii) Fuel surcharge

In addition to the normal tariff rates charged for energy sales, a fuel surcharge is calculated 
which is based on the difference between the cost of fuel used to generate energy sales in the 
current month and the fuel price at the base period. The surcharge is recovered by applying 
the month’s surcharge rate to units billed in the following month. The provision for unbilled fuel 
surcharge is included in accrued income.

(p) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is 
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably. 

Pension

The Company provides retirement benefits, under a defined-benefit plan and a defined-contribution 
plan, for substantially all of its employees. The pension plans are funded by payments from 
employees and the Company, taking account of the recommendations of independent qualified 
actuaries.

(i) Defined-benefit plan

A defined-benefit plan is one that defines the amount of pension benefit that an employee 
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of 
service and compensation.

The defined-benefit plan is a multi-employer scheme.  There are five contributing employers; 
the others are Anguilla Electricity Company Ltd., Montserrat Electricity Services Ltd., St. 
Lucia Mortgage Finance Company Ltd. and St. Lucia Electricity Services Ltd. Multi-
employers schemes pool the assets contributed by the various enterprises that are not under 
common control, and use the assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one 
enterprise on the basis that contributions and benefit levels are determined without regard to 
the identity of the enterprise that employs the employees concerned. The plan is accounted 
for as a defined-benefit plan under IAS 19 – Employee Benefits.



St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

40Renewable Energy | Power for Sustainable Development | VINLEC Annual Report 2018

Page 18 
ST. VINCENT ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

 
3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(p) Employee benefits (cont’d)

(i) Defined-benefit plan (cont'd)

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined-benefit plan is calculated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior 
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined-benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for 
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 
to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to 
any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined-benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. The Company determines the 
net interest expense (income) on the net defined-benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined-benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of 
contirbuitons and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to 
defined-benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined-
benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

(ii) Defined-contribution plan

The Company’s obligation in respect of the defined-contribution plan is limited to the 
contributions it is required to make under the plan’s rules.

The Company’s contributions to the defined-contribution pension plan are charged to profit 
or loss in the year to which they relate.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement 
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The 
Company recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating 
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of 
withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy.  Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date are discounted to 
present value.

(q) Deferred grant income

Grants related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are deferred and credited to 
income on a basis consistent with the amortization of the cost of the asset to which they relate 
(Note 14).
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(r) Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, gains on the 
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets and foreign currency gains on investments. Interest 
income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is 
recognised on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance expense comprises interest expense and foreign currency losses on borrowings. 

(s) New standards, and interpretations of and amendments to existing standards

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the current year

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning after 1 January 2018 have been adopted in these financial statements.

• IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures were amended to require additional disclosures 
when an entity first applies IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which include changes in the 
categories and carrying amounts of financial instruments before and after the application 
of the new standard.

• IRFS 9, ‘Financial Instruments” replaces IAS 39 as at January 1, 2018. The Company has 
not restated comparative information for 2017 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 
9. Therefore, the comparative information for 2017 is reported under IAS 39 and is not 
comparable to the information presented for 2018. Differences arising from the adoption of 
IFRS 9 have been recognized directly in retained earnings as at January 01, 2018 and are 
disclosed below.

Changes to classification and measurement
To determine classification and measurement categories, IFRS 9 requires all financial 
assets, except derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business 
model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 
The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets of fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL), available for sale (AFS), held-to-maturity and amortised cost have been replaced 
by:

• Debt securities at amortised cost
• Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains

or losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition
• Equity securities at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on

derecognition
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39, 
except for the treatment of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating 
to liabilities designated at FVTPL. Such movements are presented in OCI with no 
subsequent reclassification to the income statement.

Under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer separated from a host financial asset. 
Instead, financial assets are classified based on the business model and their contractual 
terms, as explained above. The accounting for derivatives embedded in financial liabilities 
and in non-financial host contracts has not changed. The Company’s classification of its 
financial assets and liabilities is explained in the transition disclosures below.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(s) New standards, and interpretations of and amendments to existing standards

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the current year, (cont’d)

Transitional disclosures
As of January 1, 2018, the Company has assessed its equity investments portfolio which had 
previously been classified as available for sale financial instruments. The Company has opted 
to not select the irrevocable option of measuring fair value changes through other 
comprehensive income for these instruments. As such these investments are classified as 
instruments measured at FVTPL.
  
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to balances 
reported under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2018 is as follows:

IAS 39
carrying 

amount as at 
December 31, 

2017
Re-

classifications
Re-

measurement

Recognition 
of IFRS 9 ECL

Note 10

IFRS 9 
Carrying 

amount as at 
January 1, 

2018
Financial Assets
Available for sale 
Long-term 
investments, 
Equity securities 1,072,700 (1,072,700) - -

At amortised cost:
Long-term 
investments 10,224,456 - - (94,013) 10,130,443

At FVTPL 
(reclassified from 
AFS) - 1,072,700 327,300 - 1,400,000

Trade and other 
receivables 32,468,026 - (5,908,984) 26,559,042

Short-term 
investments 16,567,939 - - 16,567,939

Cash at bank 1,342,583 - - - 1,342,583
Total financial 
assets 61,675,704 - 327,300 (6,002,997) 56,000,007
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

(s) New standards, and interpretations of and amendments to existing standards (cont’d)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in the current year, (cont’d)

Changes to the impairment calculation

The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the company’s accounting for financial assets’ 
impairment by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward looking ECL 
approach. IFRS 9 requires the Company to record an allowance for all financial assets not 
held at FVTPL. The allowance is based on the ECLs associated with the probability of default 
in the next twelve months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 
origination in which case a lifetime ECL is determined. Details of the impairment method are 
described in Note 3(i) above.

Transitional disclosures:

The information below sets out the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial 
position and retained earnings due to the effect of replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach 
with IFRS 9’s ECLs. 

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on retained earnings is as follows:

$
Closing balance under IAS 39 as at December 31, 2017 83,789,803
Remeasurement of investments IFRS 9 327,300
Recognition of IFRS 9 ECLs (6,002,997)

(5,675,697)
Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2018 78,114,106

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective

The following new or amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on 
the Company’s financial statements:  

• Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) effective date to be determined

• IFRS 17 Insurance contracts effective 1 January 2021

• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments effective 1 January 2019

• IFRS 16 Leases effective 1 January 2019
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4. Financial instruments – fair values and risk management (cont’d)

(b) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Copany’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determinattion of fair 
values. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date regardless of whether 
the price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The fair values of 
financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market 
prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Company determines fair 
values using other valuation techniques.

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less 
objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity, concentration, 
uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Valuation models

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

• Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
instruments that the entity can access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued 
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical 
or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation 
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

• Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the 
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs 
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that 
are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable 
adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price 
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at 
December 31, 2018: 

Financial assets
Level 1

$
Level 2

$
Level 3

$
Total

$
Long-term investments (note 6) - 1,012,500 9,664,503 10,677,003
Short-term investments - - 12,426,148 12,426,148

- 1,012,500 22,090,651 23,103,151
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4. Financial instruments – fair values and risk management (cont’d)

(b) Measurement of fair values (cont’d)

The following table presents the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value at 
December 31, 2017:

Financial assets
Level 1

$
Level 2

$
Level 3

$
Total

$
Long-term investments(note 6) - 872,700 10,424,456 11,297,156
Short-term investments - - 16,567,939 16,567,939

- 872,700 26,992,395 27,865,095

(c) Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the 
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s 
management of reserves.

(i) Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 
Company’s risk management framework.
  
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence 
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 
market conditions and services offered. The Company, through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s audit committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Company’s 
risk management policies and procedures and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk 
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.  The audit committee is 
assisted in these functions by internal audit.  Internal audit performs both regular and ad hoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the 
audit committee.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.  It arises principally from the Company’s 
receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.
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4. Financial instruments – fair values and risk management (cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management (cont’d)

(ii) Credit risk (cont'd)

The Company has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an 
appropriate credit rating.  The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents 
the expected credit losses over the lifetime of trade and other receivables. The collective loss 
allowance is determined using a practical expedient method in the form of a provision matrix to 
measure expected credit losses, based on customer categories, historical credit loss experiences 
and future economic expectations. Trade and other accounts receivable are shown net of the 
impairment provision for doubtful debts.  Cash and short-term investments are held with reputable
financial institutions which are regulated, which in management’s view, present minimal risk of 
default.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by type of customer was:

Carrying amount
2018

$
2017

$
Domestic 9,760,489 8,194,325
Commercial 9,022,168 9,218,907
Industrial 1,637,893 903,150
Government 17,095,038 12,903,100

37,515,588 31,219,482
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (7,410,481) (5,392,625)
Trade receivables, net 30,105,107 25,826,857

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during 
the year was as follows:

Trade
Receivables

$

Other
Receivables

$
Balance as at January 1, 2017 6,405,580 -
Impairment loss derecognised (1,012,955) -
Balance as at December 31, 2017 IAS 39 5,392,625 -
Effect of change in accounting policy: IFRS 9 ECL 565,928 5,343,057
Balance as at January 1, 2018 5,958,553 5,343,057
Impairment loss recognised 1,451,928 3,247,904
Balance as at December 31, 2018 7,410,481 8,590,961
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4. Financial instruments – fair values and risk management (cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management (cont’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 
financial asset.  Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at or 
close to its fair value.  Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and 
marketable securities, and the ensuring availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities.  

The management of the Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by monitoring 
budgeting commitments and by keeping committed lines of credit available and by monitoring the 
timing of its cash flows.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, excluding interest payments 
and excluding the impact of netting arrangements:

Carrying 
amount

$

Contractual 
cash flows

$

1
year

$

2-5
years

$

More than 5 
years

$
December 31, 2018
Bank overdraft 33,949 (33,949) (33,949) - -
Trade and other 
payables 16,402,661 (16,402,661) (16,402,661) - -
Borrowings 30,285,084 (30,285,084) (13,463,496) (14,305,252) (2,516,336)
Customers' deposits 12,059,494 (12,059,494) (328,000) (1,312,000) (10,419,494)

58,781,188 (58,781,188) (30,228,106) (15,617,252) (12,935,830)

Carrying 
amount

$

Contractual 
cash flows

$

1
year

$

2-5
years

$

More than 5 
years

$
December 31, 2017
Bank overdraft 890,917 (890,917) (890,917) - -
Trade and other 
payables 18,819,970 (18,819,970) (18,819,970) - -
Borrowings 39,502,871 (39,502,871) (11,432,195) (24,800,324) (3,270,352)

Customers' deposits 11,676,971 (11,676,971) (328,000) (1,312,000) (10,036,971)
70,890,729 (70,890,729) (31,471,082) (26,112,324) (13,307,323)
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4.  Financial instruments – fair values and risk management (cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management (cont’d)

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, and 
foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
foreign exchange rates.  The Company does not generally engage in currency hedges, and rather 
aims to have financial liabilities denominated in local currencies in order to avoid currency risk.  

The Company's operations are conducted in Eastern Caribbean dollars (EC), and incurs foreign 
currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the functional 
currency, the EC dollar. There is no exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the United 
States Dollar because the EC Dollar is pegged at EC$2.70 for US$1. However, there is exposure 
to foreign currency risk affecting the Company's statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income resulting from the fluctuations of other currencies. Currently, all assets 
and liabilities are denominated in Eastern Caribbean dollars. All foreign currency transactions 
are translated to Eastern Caribbean dollars.  

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
market interest rates.  

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to interest rate risks:

2018
$

2017
$

Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets 21,890,651 26,792,395
Financial liabilities 44,462,759 51,179,843
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ST. VINCENT ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

 
6. Long-term investments

2018
IFRS 9

$

2017
IAS 39

$
Equity Securities
20,000 Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange Limited Class B Shares - 200,000
150,000 Bank of St. Vincent and the Grenadines Limited Shares - 872,700
Total equity securities - AFS - 1,072,700

20,000 Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange Limited Class B Shares 200,000 -
150,000 Bank of St. Vincent and the Grenadines Limited Shares 1,012,500 -
Total equity securities FVTPL 1,212,500 -

Debt securities
4.5% Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines bonds, due January 
31, 2023 8,546,638 10,224,456
7% Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines bonds, due July 16, 
2025 1,000,000 -
Total debt securities at amortized cost 9,546,638 10,224,456
Less: provision for impairment (82,135) -
Debt securities, net 9,464,503 10,224,456
Total investments 10,677,003 11,297,156
Less: current portion (1,897,027) (1,677,818)

8,779,976 9,619,338

The movement in the allowance for impairment of investments during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
$ $

Balance as at December 31, 2017 - -
Effect of change in accounting policy: IFRS 9 ECL (94,013) -
Balance as at January 1, 2018 (94,013) -
Recovery for the year 11,878 -
Balance as at December 31, 2018 (82,135) -

The Company's shareholding in the Bank as at December 31, 2018 is 150,000 (2017:150,000) shares. The 
current market price of the shares in the Bank of St. Vincent and the Grenadines Limited is EC$6.75 per 
share (2017: EC$8).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

7. Retirement benefit obligation

The Company provided retirement benefits, under a regional multi-employer defined-benefit plan and a 
defined-contribution plan, for substantially all of its employees. The Company exited the defined benefit 
plan effective December 31, 2017 and the plan was subsequently wound up with an effective windup date 
of July 8, 2018. 

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company contributed to the regional Eastern Caribbean Utilities Pension Scheme (formerly CDC 
Caribbean Pension Plan) which was administered by Sagicor Life Inc.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan was as at December 31, 2018 and was completed by 
an independent actuary on February 5, 2018.  The plan was valued using the “Projected Unit Credit” 
method of valuation.

The section of the plan which relates to the Company was valued as at December 31, 2018 by an 
independent actuary.

(i) The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the present value of plan obligations 
were as follows:

2018 2017
% %

Discount rate at end of year - 7.50
Future promotional salary increases - 2.00

- 1.50
Future inflationary salary increases there after - 4.50
Expected rate of future pension increases - 3.00

(ii) The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position at December 31 are determined 
as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Present value of defined benefit obligation - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Defined benefit obligation - -
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7. Retirement benefit obligation (cont’d)

(a) Defined benefit plan (cont’d)

(iii) The movements in the plan assets for the year ended December 31 were as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Fair value of plan assets as at January 1 - 8,514,771
Actual return on plan assets - 497,171
Contributions - 1,202,511
Benefits paid - (296,854)
Plan settlement - (9,917,599)
Fair value of plan assets as at December 31 - -

(iv) Return on plan assets 

The actual return on plan assets for the year ended December 31 was as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Return on plan assets - 497,171

(v) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
December 31 were as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Current service costs - 244,092
Net interest on defined benefit liability:

Interest cost - 690,927
Expected return on plan assets - (672,569)
Loss on settlement - 166,144

Net period pension cost (note 7(a) (viii)) - 428,594

(vi) Re-measurement recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
2018

$
2017

$
Experience losses - 172,021
Deferred tax (note 20) - 192,607
Experience losses, net of tax, being total amount recognized 
in Other Comprehensive Income - 364,628
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7. Retirement benefit obligation (cont’d)

(a) Defined benefit plan (cont’d)

(vii) Reconciliation of opening and closing defined benefit liability: 
2018

$
2017

$
Defined benefit assets/(liability) as of January 1 - (601,896)
Net pension costs recognised in statement of comprehensive 
income (note 7(a) (vi)) - (428,594)
Contributions paid - 1,202,511
Re-measurements recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income, before tax (note 7(a) (vii)) - (172,021)
Defined benefit liability as of December 31 - -

(viii) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, 
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation as shown below:

Scenario Benefit Obligation
2018

$
2017

$
Valuation results - 9,751,449
Discount rate -1% - (11,301,826)
Discount rate +1% - 8,502,191
Salary increases - 0.5% - (9,603,622)
Salary increases + 0.5% - 9,904,676
Mortality assuming 1year longer - 9,886,867

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company has contributed to a defined contribution plan for all its other employees which is 
administered by Colonial Life Insurance Company (Trinidad) Limited. The most recent actuarial 
valuation carried out on January 1, 2000 revealed a surplus of assets. The Company’s contributions 
to the plan for the period amounted to $884,310 (2017: $ 856,276) and are expensed as incurred.

8. Inventories
2018

$
2017

$
Uniforms 731,922 414,905
Fuel, lubricants and chemicals 4,045,406 3,419,065
Stationery 189,555 183,495

4,966,883 4,017,465
Add: Goods in transit 22,100 -
Less: provision for obsolescence (194,987) (84,321)

4,793,996 3,933,144
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9. Short-term investments

Short term investments of $12,426,148 (2017: $16,567,939) comprise interest bearing certificates of 
deposit with maturities of less than one year held with the Bank of St. Vincent and the Grenadines.  The 
deposits bear interest at rates ranging from 1.85% to 2.25% annually (2017: 2.0% to 2.5%).

10. Trade and other receivables
2018

IFRS 9 
$

2017
IAS 39 

$
Current 
Trade receivables, gross 37,515,588 31,219,482
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (7,410,481) (5,392,625)
Trade receivables, net 30,105,107 25,826,857

Other receivables, gross 9,714,264 6,641,169
Less: provision for impairment of other receivables (8,590,961) -
Other receivables, net 1,123,303 6,641,169

Trade and other receivables, net 31,228,410 32,468,026
  

The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables during the year is as follows:

2018
IFRS 9 

$

2017
IAS 39 

$

Balance at the beginning of year under IAS 39 5,392,625 6,405,580
Effect of change in accounting policy: Recognition of IFRS 9 ECLs 565,928 -
Opening balance January 1, 2018 under IFRS 9 5,958,553 6,405,580
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 1,451,928 (1,012,955)
Balance at end of year 7,410,481 5,392,625

The movement in the allowance for impairment of other receivables during the year is as follows:

2018
IFRS 9 

$

2017
IAS 39 

$

Balance at the beginning of year - -
Effect of change in accounting policy: Recognition of IFRS 9 ECLs 5,343,056 -
Opening balance January 1, 2018 under IFRS 9 5,343,056 -
Provision for impairment of other receivables 3,247,905 -
Balance at end of year 8,590,961 -
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11. Share capital

Authorized – Unlimited number of ordinary shares without nominal or par value.
2018

$
2017

$
Issued and fully paid – 5,809,182 ordinary shares without nominal or 
par value 29,045,910 29,045,910

12. Borrowings

Note
2018

$
2017

$

(a) Caribbean Development Bank Funding 
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines- First 
Power Project:
International Development Association 13(a) 600,346 654,966

(b) Third Power Project:
Lowmans Bay Project 13(b) 7,890,143 12,394,500

(c) Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines
United States Agency for International Development 13(c) 5,856,792 6,599,477

(d) European Investment Bank - Lowmans Bay 13(d) 5,409,983 7,294,809

(e) PDV Caribé 13(e) 10,527,820 12,559,119
Total long-term borrowings 30,285,084 39,502,871
Less: current portion (13,463,496) (11,432,195)

16,821,588 28,070,676

(a) Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines (Caribbean Development Bank (CDB) Funding
- First Power Project) 

(i) 0.75% loan obtained through the International Development Association (IDA).

This loan is for US$664,210 and is repayable in 80 semi-annual installments of US$10,075 plus 
interest, with the final installment due October 15, 2029. 

The above loan was made by the CDB to the Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines for on-
lending by the Government to the Company. The loan agreement provides that: 

(1) all payments of principal and interest shall be made by the Company to CDB and such payments 
shall be deemed payments by the Company to the Government.

(2) the loans are to be secured by execution of a debenture giving a first floating charge over the 
undertaking and its uncalled capital.
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12. Borrowings (cont’d)

(b) Caribbean Development Bank (CDB) Funding - Third Power Project

Loan of US$18,311,000, obtained through the ordinary capital resources of CDB, repayable in 44 
approximately equal and consecutive quarterly installments of US$415,777, plus interest at a rate of 
3.80% per annum on the principal amount.  The Company shall pay a commitment charge of 1% per 
annum on the amount of the loan unwithdrawn. The loan is secured by the guarantee of the 
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines and is due to mature in July 2020.

The loan agreement provides for a grace period of 4 years following August 2005, the date of first 
draw-down on the loan. Other covenants stipulated in the agreement provide that:

(i) the Company's accounts receivable shall not exceed sixty (60) days sales;

(ii) the Company maintains a debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.5 times its total debt service;

(iii) no further expansion shall take place at Cane Hall site;

(iv) the Company continues to set aside an amount of at least one million Eastern Caribbean dollars 
($1,000,000) annually for the purposes of its self-insurance plan in respect of its transmission 
and distribution assets;

(v) the Company to submit to the Bank by March 31, in each year, a three year forecast of its 
financial performance; 

(vi) the Company should not pay dividends during the implementation of the project or in any year 
thereafter during which it fails to maintain a debt service ratio of at least 1.5 times; 

(vii) the Company should not sell, lease or transfer any of its assets which could materially and 
adversely affect its capacity to carry on its business; 

(viii) the Company should not make any loans to any of its directors or shareholders or to any other 
person for any purpose whatsoever; and

(ix) the Company should not incur any new debt unless the debt service ratio coverage of 1.5 times 
is maintained.

(c) Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines

United States Agency for International Development Loan for US$7,500,000, repayable in 60 semi-
annual installments of US$122,951 and a final installment of US$122,940 due on June 30, 2025, plus 
interest at 4% to June 30, 2007, and at 5% thereafter. The loan agreement provides that the Company
is required to earn an annual rate of return of 8% on the current net asset value of the Company's 
operational assets.

(d) European Investment Bank - Lowmans Bay

Loan of EUR 8,300,000, to be disbursed up to US$10,000,000, repayable in 22 semi-annual 
installments of US$454,545, plus interest at a fixed rate of 5.505%, due to mature in May 2020.

The loan agreement provides for a grace period of 4 years from June 2005, the date of disbursement 
of the first tranche. This loan is secured by the guarantee of the Government of St. Vincent and the 
Grenadines. Financial covenants stipulate that the Company shall:
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12. Borrowings (cont’d)

(d) European Investment Bank - Lowmans Bay (cont'd)

(i) maintain a debt service ratio of at least 1.5; and

(ii) not declare any dividends or make any other distributions to any shareholder, unless the debt 
service ratio is more than 1.5.

(e) PDV Caribé

Loan of US$12,000,000, for a period of ten (10) years, including a two (2) year grace period from 
October 3, 2010 the date of the first drawdown before principal and interest payments begin.  The 
loan is repayable in equal, or approximately equal, and consecutive semi-annual installments, plus 
interest at a fixed rate of 4.5%, commencing from October 2012, the first due date after the expiry of 
the two (2) year grace period.

13. Consumers’ contributions to line extensions

Government
$

Other 
consumers

$
Total

$
Contributions
At beginning of year 4,363,153 21,020,849 25,384,002
Received during the year - 262,844 262,844
Refunds - (2,700) (2,700)
At end of year 4,363,153 21,280,993 25,644,146

Amortization 
At beginning of year 4,363,153 19,465,372 23,828,525
Amortization for the year - 1,276,087 1,276,087
At end of year 4,363,153 20,741,459 25,104,612

Carrying amounts
As of December 31, 2017 - 1,555,477 1,555,477
As of December 31, 2018 - 539,534 539,534

14. Deferred grant income
2018

$
2017

$
Agence Française de Development Group Grant 122,350 130,160
Caricom Development Fund (CDF) 1,758,180 -

1,880,530 130,160
Amortization (7,341) (7,810)
Unamortized balance 1,873,189 122,350
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15. Consumers' deposits
2018

$
2017

$
Deposits
Beginning of year 7,131,112 6,913,592
Received during the year 497,266 444,387
Refunds (256,616) (226,867)
End of year 7,371,762 7,131,112

Interest
Beginning of year 4,545,859 4,264,515
Expense for the year 284,177 548,482
Paid during the year (142,304) (267,138)
End of year 4,687,732 4,545,859
Total 12,059,494 11,676,971

16. Deferred tax liability
  

Deferred tax liability is calculated in full on temporary differences using a tax rate of 30% (2017: 32%). The 
movement on the deferred tax liability account is as follows: -

2018
$

2017
$

At beginning of year 32,203,299 29,123,412
Recognised in profit or loss (4,314,935) 2,887,280
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - 192,607
At end of year 27,888,364 32,203,299

Deferred tax liability is attributable to the following: -
2018

$
2017

$
Property, plant and equipment 28,512,870 32,464,770
Bad debt provision (2,131,560) (1,725,640)
Provision for obsolescence (828,594) (883,833)
Unbilled sales 2,335,648 2,348,002
Total liability 27,888,364 32,203,299
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17. Trade and other payables
2018

$
2017

$
Trade payables 6,965,925 8,444,573
Accrued expenses 7,253,851 6,023,440
Other payables 1,149,458 3,318,330
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines 1,033,427 1,033,627

16,402,661 18,819,970

18. Expenses by nature
2018

$
2017

$
Fuel cost over base price 51,227,716 38,304,473
Fuel at base price 3,562,286 3,823,826
Depreciation 19,554,195 19,690,452
Repairs and maintenance 8,195,279 8,770,465
Employee benefit expense (note 23) 18,024,832 17,385,255
Other operating expenses 9,264,399 9,335,031
Impairment losses, net (note 24) 4,321,616 6,134,112
Amortization of consumers’ contributions to line extensions (1,276,087) (1,254,935)

112,874,236 102,188,679

19. Other losses (gains), net
2018

$
2017

$
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 386,156 (125,202)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (16,680)           11,352
Equity investments at FVTPL - Net change in fair value 187,500 -

556,976 (113,850)
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20. Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises: 
2018

$
2017

$
Current 4,104,170 3,297,742
Prior periods - 433,504
Deferred (4,314,935) 2,887,280

(210,765) 6,618,526

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
2018

%
2018

$
2017

%
2017

$
Profit before taxation 5,744,534 6,385,660

Income tax using applicable corporation tax rate 30.00 1,723,360 32.00 2,043,411
Non-deductible expenses (net) 120.59 6,927,520 79.61 5,083,979
Tax incentives (79.12) (4,545,306) (57.86) (3,695,214)
Change in temporary differences (40.10) (2,303,633) 43.11 2,752,846
Effect of change in applicable tax rate (35.03) (2,012,706) - -
Under provision – prior years - - 6.79 433,504

(3.66) (210,765) 103.65 6,618,526

Deferred tax on each component of other comprehensive income is as follows:

2018
$

2017
$

Before tax Tax After tax Before tax Tax After tax

Re-measurement of defined 
benefit pension plan - - - 172,021 192,607 364,628

21. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated upon net profit/loss for the year of $5,955,299 (2017: $232,866) and 
5,809,182 (2017: 5,809,182) average issued and outstanding ordinary shares.
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22. Definition of related party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Company.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of 
a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third 
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company 
or an entity related to the Company.  

(vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 
management personnel of the Company.

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 
services to the Company.

(c) Related party transactions 

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, 
regardless of whether a price is charged.

(d) Transactions with key management personnel

(i) short-term employee benefits, such as wages, salaries and social security contributions, paid 
annual leave and paid sick leave, profit-sharing and bonuses (if payable within twelve months 
of the end of the period) and non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and 
free or subsidised goods or services) for current employees;

(ii) post-employment benefits such as pensions, other retirement benefits, post-employment life 
insurance and post-employment medical care;
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22. Related parties (cont’d)

(d) Transactions with key management personnel (cont’d)

(iii) other long-term employee benefits, including long-service leave or sabbatical leave, jubilee or 
other long-service benefits, long-term disability benefits and, if they are not payable wholly 
within twelve months after the end of the period, profit-sharing, bonuses and deferred 
compensation;

(iv) termination benefits.

Transactions with related parties during the year were as follows:
2018

$
2017

$
Revenue
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines and its corporations 13,948,507 13,427,804

Expenses
Management compensation 1,668,768 1,600,294
Directors’ fees and expenses 190,955 189,320

The Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines receives a 10% discount on tariff sales for all 
accounts other than street lighting.

Balances arising from supply of services at year end and included in trade and other receivables 
were as follows: 

2018
$

2017
$

Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines 17,095,038 12,903,100

Other balances with related parties were as follows as at December 31: 

2018
$

2017
$

Investment
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines (Note 6) 9,546,638 10,224,456

Other receivables
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines 104,037 104,037

Other payables
Government of St. Vincent and the Grenadines (Note 17) 1,033,427 1,033,627

Long-term borrowings
Loans guaranteed by the Government of St. Vincent and the 
Grenadines (Note 12) 13,300,126 19,689,309
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23. Employee benefit expense
2018

$
2017

$
Salaries and wages 15,256,324 15,086,714
National insurance contributions 632,844 618,619
Medical insurance contributions 382,864 367,019
Pension expense 1,752,800 1,312,903

18,024,832 17,385,255
Number of employees at the reporting date 313 309

24. Impairment
2018

$
2017

$
Impairment loss derecognized (366,338) (1,012,955)
Trade receivables impairment 1,451,928 7,147,067
Other receivables impairment IFRS 9 3,247,904 -
Debt securities at FVTPL (11,878) -

4,321,616 6,134,112

25. Capital commitments

As of December 31, 2018, the directors approved capital expenditure totaling $36.69 million (2017: $20.77
million). 

26. Contingent liabilities

Interest at the rate of 18% is charged on amounts past due to PDVSA for the purchase of petroleum 
products.  As at November 30, 2014, accrued interest amounting to $5,092,867 has been accrued by 
PDVSA on the outstanding balance. Included in this amount is $3,891,027 in respect of LPG imports which 
the company believes is not the responsibility of the Company.

Consequently, the Company is not admitting liability and is disputing any claims for the above amounts.  If,
however, the resolution of the dispute does not go in the Company’s favor, the liability will be recorded in 
the period in which the dispute is resolved.

27. Self-insurance fund

In accordance with a plan that was approved at a special Board of Directors’ meeting on May 26, 2017, a 
total of $3,287,568 (2017: $2,610,801) was appropriated from the self-insurance fund (see notes 5 and 
12(b)) to fund the defined contribution plan.
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ADDITIONAL COMMENTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Shareholder
St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited
Kingstown

The accompanying schedules I and II are presented as supplementary information only.  In 

this respect, they do not form part of the financial statements of St. Vincent Electricity 

Services Limited for the year ended December 31, 2018 and hence are excluded from the 

opinion expressed in our report dated November 13, 2019 to the shareholder on such 

financial statements. 

Chartered Accountants
Kingstown, St. Vincent and the Grenadines
November 13, 2019
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
XCD XCD XCD XCD XCD XCD

000’s 000’s 000’s 000’s 000’s 000’s
SUMMARISED BALANCE SHEET Restated Restated Restated
Share capital 29,046 29,046 29,046 29,046 29,046 29,046
Retained earnings 87,356 83,790 82,461 86,602 78,347 76,568
Other reserves 21,102 24,390 26,316 26,638 27,056 84,092
Non –current liabilities 57,309 73,505 82,565 100,989 113,981 87,379
Deferred income 1,873 122 130 138 147 156

196,686 210,853 220,518 243,413 248,577 277,241
Fixed assets (Net) 165,972 175,351 182,761 186,764 197,105 219,635
Long-term investments 8,779 9,619 11,297 12,902 14,437 15,189
Retirement benefit asset - - - - 362 -
Current assets 53,466 57,026 65,419 76,794 76,858 77,071
Current liabilities (31,531) (31,143) (38,959) (33,047) (40,185) (34,654)

196,686 210,853 220,518 243,413 248,577 277,241
SUMMARISED RESULTS
Operating Revenues
Electricity sales 68,572 69,493 70,479 67,456 65,021 65,334
Fuel surcharge 50,514 38,221 33,114 42,362 67,851 68,760
Other 1,292 1,189 1,169 1,632 2,781 2,650
Total 120,378 108,903 104,762 111,450 135,653 136,744
Operating Expenses
Fuel cost covered by surcharge 51,228 38,304 33,786 41,958 67,737 69,100
Renewable energy purchased 307 235 189 137 206 -
Operating and maintenance

- Hydro 1,832 2,150 3,676 4,120 1,886 2,074
- Diesel 15,808 17,186 10,986 6,141 15,705 15,487

Transmission & distribution 4,842 4,915 11,186 10,950 4,394 3,766
Administration & other 19,491 19,709 13,153 13,094 20,618 14,104
Depreciation 19,554 19,690 19,907 20,947 20,263 20,669
Total 113,062 102,189 92,883 97,347 130,809 125,200
Operating income 7,317 6,714 11,878 14,103 4,844 11,544
Interest and other cost (1,572) (329) (1,185) (2,895) (3,246) (4,788)
Net profit before tax 5,744 6,385 10,693 11,208 1,598 6,756
Income tax expense 210 (6,618) 1,668 (2,953) (1,116) (1,039)
Net profit after tax 5,955 (233) 12,361 8,255 482 5,717
Other comprehensive income - (364) (322) (419) - 182
Appraisal element in depreciation/reversed - - (1,157) (506) 961 1,081
Retained earnings brought forward 83,790 82,461 86,602 78,347 76,568 70,865
Impact of change in policy (5,676) - 2,404 925 3,240 -
Transfer from retirement benefit reserve - (684) - - - -
Deferred tax on retirement benefit reserve - - - - - 201
Final/Interim dividend - - (17,427) - (2,904) -
Transfer from (to) self-insurance fund 3,288 2,610 - - - -
Retained earnings carried forward 87,356 83,790 82,461 86,602 78,347 78,046

St. Vincent Electricity Services Limited

Financial Statistics | Schedule 1
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2018

(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)
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Schedule II
ST. VINCENT ELECTRICITY SERVICES LIMITED
Financial Statistics
As at and for the year ended December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
GENERATING PLANT (KW)
Site Rated Capacity (KW)
St. Vincent 35,008 37,300 41,413 41,413 41,413 42,675
Bequia 4,145 4,145 4,145 4,145 4,145 4,145
Union Island 1,838 1,838 1,530 1,530 1,170 1,170
Canouan 4,040 4,040 4,040 4,040 4,040 4,040
Mayreau 368 302 284 284 284 180
Firm Capacity (KW)
St. Vincent 26,308 28,600 32,713 32,713 33,357 34,493
Bequia 2,090 2,090 2,090 2,090 2,579 2,579
Union Island 1,074 1,074 770 770 693 693
Canouan 1,560 1,560 1,560 1,560 2,484 2,484
Mayreau 140 114 120 120 162 108
Peak Demand (KW)- (All Time)
St. Vincent 21,692 21,692 21,692 21,424 21,120 21,120
Bequia 1,660 1,574 1,570 1,570 1,570 1,570
Union Island 589 580 533 533 533 533
Canouan 810 810 810 810 810 810
Mayreau 91 79 79 79 79 65
PRODUCTION AND SALES 
Gross Generation (kWhs)
Hydro 23,770,249 20,327,820 15,932,020 16,757,832 11,858,670 22,976,040
Solar 1,149,929 816,242 809,941 866,064 343,256 148,180
Diesel 125,009,805 128,932,762 136,231,070 128,625,162 129,469,267 118,905,211

149,929,983 150,076,824 152,973,031 146,249,058 141,671,193 142,029,431
Own Use (4,544,729) (4,719,722) (4,728,124) (4,529,913) (4,667,575) (4,859,493)
Net Generation 145,385,254 145,357,102 148,244,907 141,719,145 137,003,618 137,169,938
Renewable energy purchased 813,926 594,193 436,004 302,079 159,568 133,501
Net energy available for sale 146,199,180 145,951,295 148,680,911 142,021,224 137,163,186 137,303,439
Sales (kWhs)
Domestic 68,226,521 68,483,434 67,492,978 63,506,236 60,397,932 60,462,944
Commercial 56,947,765 57,072,135 60,008,499 58,601,969 56,749,650 57,565,123
Industrial 6,938,268 7,277,376 7,385,600 7,394,177 7,069,590 6,544,460
Street lighting 3,003,348 3,098,274 3,232,336 3,182,880 3,175,998 3,173,238
Total Sales 135,115,902 135,931,219 138,119,413 132,685,262 127,393,170 127,745,765
Loss (% of Net Generation) 7.58% 6.86% 7.10% 6.57% 7.12% 6.96%
Number of Consumers at year end
Domestic 40,402 39,569 39,012 38,248 37,531 36,864
Commercial 4,619 4,536 4,486 4,479 4,431 4,438
Industrial 24 23 23 22 21 21
Street lighting 46 46 46 47 47 47

45,091 44,174 43,567 42,796 42,030 41,370
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